

TEACHER'S GUIDE TO



READING BEAR CONTACT:

Casey LaFoe

caseylafoe@yahoo.com



Table of Contents

About Reading Bear	5
Credits and Program Information	5
Getting Started—Q&A, Tips, and Tools	5
For what age level is Reading Bear appropriate?	6
Is Reading Bear meant to be a high-pressure program?	6
Could schools use Reading Bear?	6
Is Reading Bear a "systematic, explicit phonics" program?	7
How is Reading Bear supposed to work?	7
Why does Reading Bear spend so much time teaching vocabulary?	7
Could I use Reading Bear as a baby or toddler reading program?	8
Couldn't ESL learners benefit from Reading Bear?	8
What are the "A B C" letters below the presentation titles?	8
What are "interludes?"	8
How to Get the Most from Reading Bear	
What Path Should I Take Through Reading Bear?11	1
The Reading Bear Software 14	4
Create an Account	
Select a Presentation14	4
Settings Tips1!	5
Navigation Tips	5
APPENDIX A – Complete Word List for Modules16	5
Modules 1 – 10	
Modules 11 – 20 13	7
Modules 21 – 30	8
Modules 31 – 40	9
Modules 41 – 50 20	0



About Reading Bear

Reading Bear is the first free program online to teach beginning readers vocabulary and concepts while systematically introducing all the main phonetic patterns of written English, all using innovative rich media.

How does it work? In each presentation—playable either as a video or as an interactive slide show—we introduce one or a few related "phonics rules." Presentations are available in seven different modes. In the fullest mode, we sound out a word slowly and quickly, then blend it slowly, and finally (after an optional prompt) blend it quickly. As sounds are pronounced, the corresponding letters are highlighted. Then we display a picture illustrating the word, show a sentence (with the individual sounds again highlighted, karaoke style), and finally show a video illustrating the sentence. Presentations give this treatment to around 25 words, though some presentations have more or less words. The result is a thorough yet painless introduction to phonics principles, while at the same time teaching vocabulary. Please review these and many other features in the **Getting Started** section of this *Teacher's Guide*.

We hope you will use Reading Bear in a non-stressful, non-pressuring way. Learning to read can be fun and easy if you go at the child's pace instead of some pre-determined pace.

Credits and Program Information

Reading Bear and WatchKnowLearn are free, ad-free, non-profit projects of the St. Charles Place Education Foundation. Reading Bear's images and many of its videos were generously donated by Shutterstock.com, to whom we wish to offer deep thanks. The rest of the videos were also provided by Shutterstock.com, at a significant discount.



Getting Started—Q&A, Tips, and Tools

For What age level is Reading Bear Appropriate?

Reading Bear is targeted primarily at children learning to read at the traditional ages of 4-7. The concepts, vocabulary, and length of the presentations were designed especially with these ages in mind. But even younger children do enjoy and get something out of Reading Bear.

Is Reading Bear meant to be a high-pressure program?

Absolutely not. It is best if the student proceeds at his own pace, using the program in many short and easy sessions instead of long, difficult sessions. The program can be played as a video that demands nothing from students, and at first, for many students, that is probably how it should be used. The program's fifty presentations are gradual and cumulative, and the several options within each presentation enable the student to thoroughly learn the phonics rules without pressure, mystery, or difficulty. Progress can and should be gradual and easy every step of the way.

Could schools use Reading Bear?

Yes! Early elementary classes especially, but preschool programs too. Consider:

Free and accessible. The website is always available for free online, and should not be blocked by district Web filters.

Painless. Reading Bear is an easy way to learn some complex phonics principles. We give many examples of a principle, and sound out each word clearly while the letters are highlighted, so students should quickly internalize the principles.

Whole-class use. Reading Bear presentations can be shown to a whole class as videos.

Individual use. Even better, students could go through the program at their own pace at individual workstations.

Student accounts. Teachers can create student accounts from just one email address, allowing you to track individual student progress. Go to My Account>subaccounts.

Systematic. Reading Bear presentations cover all the main phonics principles in a step-by-step way.

But adaptable. Reading Bear is very flexible. You can pick and choose specific presentations and options to adapt our system to your needs.

Teacher's Guide to Reading Bear

Good for remedial programs. As Reading Bear uses a systematic phonics approach, we expect that it might be especially useful in remedial reading programs.

Good for ESL. Classrooms around the world use Reading Bear to help students learn English.

Is Reading Bear a "systematic, explicit phonics" program?

Yes. But we know that reading is not just decoding—it is also comprehension. So Reading Bear strongly emphasizes meaning with its rich media. Most of the sentences either define the word or describe some basic fact about the concept.

How is Reading Bear supposed to work?

Reading Bear combines carefully-matched text and audio with pictures and videos, to show the student precisely how each letter is sounded out and what words mean. This will, we hope, "unlock the mystery" of reading for young students both in terms of phonics and comprehension.

The student can systematically begin with a very easy presentation type—"Sound It Out Slowly"—and even have all the words demonstrated in advance, with no participation required. For the next step, the student hears the words blended slowly and is asked only to blend it quickly. By the third step, the student has heard the words two or more times apiece and has very likely begun to internalize sounds being taught. So the student is ready to start blending the word with only a quick sounding-out of the word as a prompt. In the last step, the student both sounds out and blends the words with only the text as a clue.

The student can then practice fluency by using flashcards and quick, easy quizzes. The quizzes alone are apt to be useful for many students.

Why does Reading Bear spend so much time teaching vocabulary?

Research by Hart and Risley made it clear that preschoolers with larger vocabularies have much better academic success later on than preschoolers with smaller vocabularies. According to one study the researchers did, as reported by Paul Tough in *Whatever It Takes*,

By age 3, children whose parents were professionals had vocabularies of about 1,100 words, and children whose parents were on welfare had vocabularies of about 525 words. The children's I.Q.'s correlated closely to their vocabularies. The average I.Q. among the professional children was 117, and the welfare children had an average I.Q. of 79.

Teacher's Guide to Reading Bear

Reading Bear introduces and explains, in a way accessible even to three-year-olds, over 1,200 basic vocabulary items. Repeated viewings of each presentation will go a long way to imparting much of the sort of basic vocabulary that children of professionals have mastered. So those of us behind Reading Bear feel very comfortable in saying that our resource helps develop not only decoding skills but also the sort of basic vocabulary that is so essential to learning to read.

Could I use Reading Bear as a baby or toddler reading program?

Reading Bear is intended first and foremost for students who are getting started with reading at the normal age.

That said, you could, and Reading Bear is simple and repetitive enough, and has features (such as videos of voiceovers), that make it attractive for "baby reading." We know that there is not enough research done to prove scientifically that this is a good idea.

One often overlooked advantage of teaching to very young children is that they are not intimidated by reading. They don't know that it's supposed to be hard. If you proceed at the child's pace rather than at a pace you pre-determined for him or her, if you treat it as a game, and if you take breaks when and for as long as needed, then your little student will have fun and learn much more than you might have thought possible.

Couldn't ESL learners benefit from Reading Bear?

Sure! It cannot teach English grammar, but it can help teach reading, pronunciation, and vocabulary. We recommend turning on "Always show video of word spoken" to help with pronunciation—you will be able to see a native (U.S. English) speaker forming the words.

What are the "A B C" letters below the presentation titles?

They divide presentations into five-word chunks, for students with shorter attention spans. If you log in, then each time you click on one of these, a counter increments upward.

What are "interludes?"

Young beginning readers often have poor attention spans, but Reading Bear presentations are quite long. A "micro-break," if it is not too long, can actually improve attention.



How to Get the Most from Reading Bear

The following is our advice on how to use Reading Bear as part of a reading program. This is just one use scenario. For more advice on specific classroom and home situations, please see the next section, **What path should I take through Reading Bear?**

First things first. The student should be very well acquainted with the letters of the alphabet before starting Reading Bear. It will help the student to know an alphabet song, how to say the ABCs, and most importantly, the sounds of the individual consonants and not just the names of the letters. The vowels are trickier and are taught systematically by Reading Bear. For this preparatory work, we have curated these videos.

Steps to follow. Reading Bear can be used in a whole-class setting, but for most efficient progress, students should use Reading Bear individually. You might follow this pattern:

- To introduce Reading Bear to the student, you could play the "Getting Started" video, which is addressed to students.
- Start the first presentation, and choose "Sound It Out Slowly" with the "Can you read this?" prompts turned off (in the settings). Show the whole presentation.
- Play "Sound It Out Slowly" again, with the "Can you read this?" prompts turned on. (Press the right arrow to go on after the prompt.) This should not be too difficult, because the words are blended slowly for the student, and all the student has to do is say it.
- If the student can say the "Sound It Out Slowly" words with no trouble, try "Sound It Out Quickly." It will probably be more difficult to say the words now, especially for the first several presentations.
- Once the student can say the "Sound It Out Quickly" words with no trouble, it's time to tackle "Let Me Sound It Out." This is also a hard step too, of course, but once it's done, the student is reading the words!
- Once the student can read the words, you might try the Audio Flashcards (with "Pause and ask me to say the words" unchecked) for quick review.
 Checking "Pause and ask me to say the words," or simply using Silent Flashcards, is good for quick practice.
- Finally, try a quiz. (See the "Take a quiz" links on the right side of the front page.) Be sure to both review and do quizzes over older word sets occasionally, to keep the rules freshly in mind.

Teacher's Guide to Reading Bear

- Once the student has mastered this rule, let the student press the "I have mastered these words" link on the end-of-presentation screen. This puts a satisfying gold star on the front page when you're logged in, and the "Choose For Me" button will then skip this presentation.
- Then go on to the next presentation!

Note: you could try using the **Choose For Me** button (on the front page and on the end-of-presentation screen). It's handy, but it might not be as effective as just figuring out where the student should be yourself. The **Choose For Me** button uses a simple algorithm to determine which is the next best presentation to show the student. This algorithm might not work for some students.

Some General Advice

Of course, follow the usual good advice on teaching children to read—most importantly, read as much as you can to them, and run your fingers under the words as you read to them. Also, consider the following:

- Don't ask a student to sound out words, or blend words, before they're ready. Figuring out how to go from sounding out a word to blending it is one of the hardest parts of reading. Go as slow as the student needs to, which might be very slow in the beginning. Your patience will be rewarded.
- Strike while the iron is hot. If your student is excited about learning to read and likes Reading Bear, let him or her use it as long as desired.
- If your student is capable of blending words without first sounding out, don't insist on sounding out. Some students sound out words in their heads very well.
- Let students decide when they're ready to take a quiz. A perfect score shouldn't be necessary to go on, because students can make errors due to things like a slip of the mouse, or just flagging attention. Quizzes are randomly generated each time you start one, so feel free to take as many as you want until mastery is achieved. You can take quizzes over not just a single presentation, but over the last five and over all presentations so far.
- Don't skip the review! Reviews are also randomly generated each time you start one. Reviews might seem redundant, but they help students a lot. Just because they knew a bunch of words and a principle "cold" a few weeks ago, that doesn't mean they know them now.



What Path Should I Take Through Reading Bear?

How you should use Reading Bear depends on your situation. Let's address some possible cases.

As a classroom supplement for a phonics program. Suppose you've already got a rigorous phonics curriculum in your pre-K, Kindergarten, or First Grade class, and you don't want to give up the curriculum, but Reading Bear looks great to you. In that case, you'd take a few minutes out to match, as best as you can, the scope and sequence of your program to the Reading Bear scope and sequence. Not all phonics programs follow the same methods or introduce the same rules, but there are often similarities or useful overlap. For maximum use in individual workstations, have your kids begin with "Sound It Out Slowly" and, if they find they don't need that preliminary practice, tell them to switch to "Sound It Out Quickly." If they don't need words sounded out for them, then have them switch to "Let Me Sound It Out." If they can already decode the words in a set, and you want to use Reading Bear for reinforcement, then they could use "Silent Flashcards," the review presentations, and the guizzes for that. Note that the reviews and the guizzes are different (randomized) each time you open them. The sentences and videos in "Audio Sentences" can be used as a little reinforcing treat, if students like them. Finally, if the students are advanced and just want some fun practice, they can use "Silent Sentences." While the sentences are not leveled, they are at a low (1st- through 3rd-grade) reading level. If students get stuck on a word, they can simply click on it and the pronunciation dictionary both sounds out and blends the word.

As a classroom supplement for a whole language program. If your class has only limited exposure to phonics, and your focus is more on student reading of leveled texts and teacher read-alouds, then you might want to use Reading Bear—which is 100% free—as a quick, efficient introduction to systematic phonics. The site teaches a complete set of phonics rules following a painless, yet effective and proven method (it is basically a digital version of Rudolf Flesch's method from his classic book, Why Johnny Can't Read). We recommend that you use the procedure outlined at "Steps to Follow." In individual work stations, let students understand that they should stay on a presentation only as long as they have to. If they have mastered a set of words, and are getting 14 or 15 out of 15 on the quiz for a presentation, then move on. We are confident that with just 10 minutes a day, your little readers could be recognizing words with renewed confidence.



As a resource for remedial work. A number of remedial reading educators have praised Reading Bear. It is well-known that what many poor readers need is to have the phonics rules of written English made extremely clear. They also often have trouble blending words. While Reading Bear is a brand new program and so no studies have yet been done, these problems are things that it seems we can help with. Reading Bear is, first and foremost, a systematic phonics site. Rules are simple, and typically illustrated with a few dozen examples. Our emphasis is on making phonics rules second nature. We also do something that no other free phonics program does-sound out every word that is introduced, at two speeds, and blend it slowly, before reading it at full speed. This teaches both the individual parts of words and how they come together as a whole. So we believe Reading Bear's unique strength, along with its combination of phonics and vocabulary work, is in its power to teach blending. We are sure that remedial reading instructors are capable of determining how best to use the resources of Reading Bear, but we recommend that students be allowed to go through the program at their own pace, not moving forward until they have achieved mastery. "Mastery" here means reading words rapidly and accurately, without sounding them out, or sounding them out only "in the head."

A note to teachers. Some teachers have complained that Reading Bear moves too fast. In their classwork, some teachers can spend a long time on a single word, and they can't get past the fact that Reading Bear, even in the "Sound It Out Slowly" setting, covers a single word in a half-minute at most. If there is a disagreement here, it is methodological. But first, we do assume that students have completely mastered the consonant sounds and do not have any trouble reproducing a sound immediately on seeing a letter.

Once students are at that comfort level with the letters, the Reading Bear method can teach students a rule rather than teaching words. For purposes of teaching a rule, going through many examples quickly and explicitly, with the aim of making use of the rule automatic, is more effective than a slower, analytical pace. If a student has indeed mastered the consonant sounds and then learns the short /a/ sound from the Reading Bear presentation, she should have no trouble decoding the words. She will not have to memorize individual words.

As a homeschooling program for complete beginners. Reading Bear is perfect for one-on-one work. You work at your own pace. But we do not start at the very beginning. The first step to learning to read, using phonics, is to gain absolute mastery of the letter sounds—not just familiarity, but mastery. So if your students cannot reproduce the sounds of the consonants instantly (the vowels don't matter so much, because they are highly variable and are taught in phonics), you

READING BEAR WARTHWARM

Teacher's Guide to Reading Bear

could have them practice the consonants with books or with these videos. When they can instantly and reliably say the most common sounds (hard c, hard g) of any consonant upon being presented with it, they're ready for Reading Bear. Once they're ready, if they're between 4 and 6, we recommend easing students into the program with "Sound It Out Slowly," gradually switch to "Sound It Out Quickly" and "Let Me Sound It out," and aim for mastery. They'll pick up the rules automatically after they see many examples.

Don't go onto the next presentation until your student really understands the previous one and can read the words without pausing to sound them out. The rules are cumulative after the first five, so there are definite advantages to doing them in order. If you're using Reading Bear as a supplement to your main phonics program, however, you might want to do them "out of order"—see above under "As a classroom supplement for a phonics program."

As an early-education program for preschoolers, toddlers, and even babies. Reading Bear is highly visual and introduces its information explicitly and at a pace that can hold the interest of the very young—your mileage may vary, but we know of many small children who sit still for Reading Bear. Very young children are at a golden age in which they can absorb complex information effortlessly. This is how they learn to speak without any lessons—and even in multiple languages, or sign language.

Writing is, after all, just another and rather clearer form of this very complex phenomenon we call language. If you think about it, there is no reason to suppose small children are incapable of decoding written language if they can pick up French, Spanish, or Mandarin, or sign language, along with spoken English. Moreover, this is the experience of a rapidly growing community of people who use methods like Glenn Doman's and products like *Your Baby Can Read*.

While there is no hard-nosed research on methods of teaching babies to read (see discussion), there is a lot of individual experience shared in books like Doman's (and one by Timothy Kailing) and in the BrillKids.com Forums. Reading Bear can be used with some of these methods. Simply playing one part (i.e., the A, B, C, etc. parts under the title) of the "short a" presentation using the "Sound It Out Slowly" setting to a two-year-old, once per day, can be enough to let the child infer phonics rules and, eventually, learn to read. But by itself, Reading Bear is unlikely to have this effect.

The child should be exposed to his ABCs and letter sounds and be read to daily, and in other ways benefit from a rich language environment. It also helps greatly

Teacher's Guide to Reading Bear

to point to the words as you read them to your child, even a very small child who can't read at all. Finally, don't expect immediate, dramatic results, and don't test your child—doing so tends to put small children off, and increase stress levels, we have found. Simply think of your early language development tasks—including use of Reading Bear—as just fun enrichment activities, and enjoy the journey.

The Reading Bear Software

The Reading Bear system is pretty self-explanatory, but here are a few tips on slightly less obvious things.

Create an Account

It is not necessary to log in to use the site! But you should! If you do, you will be able to save your quiz scores as well as track which presentations and parts you have viewed and how many times, and whether you have mastered the words (in your own opinion). The **Choose For Me** button will appear. Also, your place in each presentation will be automatically saved for you, even from day to day. Teachers can also make accounts for their students. Click **My Account** and then **subaccounts**.

Select a Presentation

When you click a presentation (e.g., "short a"), you will see seven choices. Each option draws from the same content. The first three are the core "intensive teaching" modes.

- Sound It Out Slowly: this is where to start if the student has no experience with the phonics rule the presentation covers. It slowly sounds out all words and includes all the media. It is the longest presentation type, but bear in mind that you can always come back to where you left off later.
- Sound It Out Quickly: after some experience with the rule, switch to this
 presentation type. It omits the slowest sound-out and also omits the slow
 blended version. If you choose "Pause and ask me to say the words" (in
 Settings), this is perfect for the student who needs only a little help
 sounding out.
- 3. Let Me Sound It Out: when the student has had enough exposure to the words and is ready for an in-depth "test," choose this option. The software simply presents the word and asks the student to say it. Then you use the right arrow to move on to the picture, sentence, and video slides.

Teacher's Guide to Reading Bear

The next two presentations are useful for review:

- 4. **Audio Flashcards**: a quick way to review the words passively.
- 5. **Silent Flashcards**: useful for quick self-quizzing of all the words. If you can't remember the word, you can click it and have it sounded out.

The final two presentations are for more advanced students who want to use the sentences from Reading Bear for self-study. These presentations cannot be used by beginning readers, because they contain many more advanced and irregular words that have not been introduced in the early levels of Reading Bear.

- 6. **Audio Sentences**: an entertaining way to receive a detailed "karaoke" presentation of sounds of whole sentences.
- 7. **Silent Sentences**: for students who are ready to try to read whole sentences—again, not beginning readers—you can take a stab at these. If you can't figure out a word, click on it. All phonetic words in sentences are sounded out.

Settings Tips

Access settings via these buttons:



and



- "Always show video of word spoken" Turn on if you want to see a video
 of someone reading the words. This might be used with very young
 children and ESL students, who could benefit from seeing (not just
 hearing) pronunciation modeled.
- "Pause and ask me to say the words" Uncheck if you want the presentation to play without any interaction needed.
- "Enable interludes" Check if you want a 15-second art and music video shown as a quick break for the student. Many students love this feature!

Navigation Tips

- If a presentation is loading very slowly for you, toggle off HD (press the HD button).
- The "Auto" button is on by default. This makes the slides advance automatically, like a video. But you can turn this off and advance the slides manually (with the right arrow).
- If the presentation screen seems too small or too large, adjust the size by clicking the "A's" at the top of the page.



APPENDIX A – Complete Word List for Modules

Modules 1 – 10

MOD		a	b	С	d	e	f
1	Short a	map	pat	ham	fan	had pass	
		lap	rat	man	bag	dad jazz	
		nap	mat	tan	rag	pad	
		tap	jam	pan	wag	sad	
		bat	Sam	van	mad	gas	
2	Short e	pet	hen	get	tell	Ted egg	
		yes	men	set	bell	ted ebb	
		mess	Ben	let	well	bed web	
		less	ten	jet	yell	beg	
		pen	net	wet	Ed	leg	
3	Short i	in	dig	hill	sip	Tim rib	
		pin	did	bill	zip	him bib	
		pig	lid	Jill	rip	hit	
		wig	ill	mill	tip	sit	
		big	will	sis	Jim	bit	
4	Short o	dot	pot	dog	hop	toss	
		doll	lot	nod	mop	boss	
		got	log	God	top	sob	
		not	hog	Don	Tom	rob	
		hot	fog	pop	moss	bob	
5	Short u	pup	fun	dull	hug	but huff	
_		hum	bun	mud	rug	nut fuzz	
		gum	bus	bud	mug	tub buzz	
		run	fuss	bug	mutt	rub	
		nun	full	tug	hut	puff	
6	c and k	can	kin	cob Ken			
		cat	kid	cut keg			
		cap	Kim	cuff			
		cab	cop	cup			
		kiss	cot	cub			
7	ck	sack	back	tick	lock tuck		
		lack	neck	lick	rock buck		
		pack	duck	kick	sock deck		
		rack	Nick	sick	suck		
		tack	pick	dock	luck		
8	blends	gift	elf	bulb camp			
	(ending,	lift	self	bump damp			
	part 1)	melt	help	dump bend			
	partij	felt	milk	pump			
		send	belt	jump			
9	blends	sand	tent	mist west			
	(ending,	band	ask	fist fast			
	part 2)	pond	desk	vest last			
	part 2 j	land	dust	nest			
		bent	must	rest			
10	adding s	hills	fins	tops	wigs	masks	helps
	_	pills	cuts	sips	pigs	asks	jumps
		sells	cats	cups	gifts	rests	pumps
		hums	bats	ducks	lifts	melts	pants
		hens	beds	digs	milks	elms	



Modules 11 – 20

11	J! l	laine or	hana	minds		Cab Con	
11	digraphs	king	hang	pink	junk	fish fox	
	and x	wing	bangs	winks tank	ash cash	rush mix ax six	
		sing	lungs				
		song	ink	bank	dash	wax	
4.0		long	mink	dunk	dish	ox	
12	Initial	blink	scamp	splash	trash	grip strap	
	blends	clap	skid	stop	brat	prank shrug	
		flock	slack	swell	crust	scrub	
		glad	snap	twin	drink	spring	
		plump	span	brush	Fran	string	
13	wh, qu, th	when	quiz	squint	thick	thrush broth	
		whiff	quilt	this	thing	thump cloth	
		whisk	quick	that	think	moth	
		whack	quill	then	thank	with	
		quack	quit	thin	thrill	Smith	
14	ch, tch	chin	chick	much	lunch	patch	ranch
		chop	crunch	such	quench	pitch	catch
		chunk	chat	which	punch	witch	crutch
		chest	chill	rich	pinch	stretch	match
		check	chum	branch	itch	sketch	
15	two	bucket	sunset	robin	basket		
	syllables	exit	shopping	chicken	vanish		
	Synables	longest	kitchen	rabbit	chipmunk		
		bathtub	biggest	napkin	address		
		crossing	wicked	lemon	dentist		
					dustpan		
					upset		
					hatrack		
16	long e	he	tea	feet	meat	week	speak beach
		she	ear	free	steel	weak	queen teach
		be	see	flee	steal	deer	wheel
		me	seed	flea	peek	dear	sweet
		we	deep	meet	peak	street	peach
17	00	moo	too	roof	tooth	shook stood	
		moon	tool	drool	foot	hook	
		noon	stool	room	took	hood	
		soon	cool	broom	book	good	
		spoon	food	root	look	wood	
18	ar	ma	yard	arm	marsh	lark	
		pa	arch	harm	march	park	
		far	art	star	mark	spark	
		car	cart	start	dark	sharp	
		card	part	smart	bark	scarf	
19	or	or	sort	born	thorn	porch	
		for	sport	corn	form	cork	
		fork	short	horn	storm	cord	
		fort	snort	worn	torch	lord	
		port	north	torn	scorch		
20	er, ur, ir	her	purr	church	firm	shirt	bird
		hers	surf	turn	first	squirt	birch
		herd	hurt	burn	sir	squirm	chirp
		fern	curb	burst	stir	third	girl
		fur	curl	fir	skirt	dirt	1



Modules 21 – 30

21	oy, oi	boy	coil	broil	join		
	••	joy	oil	soil	joint		
		toy	toil	spoil	moist		
		Roy	foil	coin	hoist		
		coy	boil	point			
22	ow, ou	OW	howl	frown	count	sprout	flour
		owl	down	brown	out	south	loud
		now	town	growl	pout	mouth	cloud
		cow	clown	grouch	shout	our	proud
		how	crown	couch	snout	sour	pound
23	aw, au, al	raw	yawn	lawn	chalk	small bald	
		jaw	dawn	launch	all	hall	
		saw	hawk	talk	tall	fault	
		straw	haunt	stalk	ball	halt	
		claw	law	walk	fall	salt	
24	ai	aim	rail	wait	train	plain	
		pail	trail	bait	drain	saint	
		mail	sail	paid	grain	brain	
		hail	snail	main	pain	stain	
		tail	quail	rain	paint		
25	ay, air	day	bay	pray	fair		
		May	ray	spray	pair		
		lay	gray	say	hair		
		way	pay	stay	chair		
		hay	play	air	stairs		
26	y, ie, ind, ild	my	dry	pie	tried	kind	
		by	fry	tie	dried	wild	
		cry	shy	lie	rind	child	
		try	why	flies	find	mild	
		sky	rye	tied	mind		
27		go	toast	boat	load	hoe	
		SO	coast	float	goal	toe	
	o, oa, oe	no	coach	throat	oar	doe	
		oak oats	coat	road toad	roar Joe	goes	
20		mow	goat	bowl	fold	cold	
28		show	grow low	roll	gold	colt	
	old, olt, ow	snow	glow	stroll	hold	bolt	
	olu, olt, ow	throw	slow	old	sold	DOIL	
		row	blow	told	scold		
20		blue	drew	dew	Scolu		
29		glue	chew	blew			
	ew, ue	true	stew	screw			
	ew, ue	Sue	crew	news			
		new	threw		1		
30		snowball	flowers	September	always	oatmeal	mustard
30		shadow	punishment	banjo	Saturday	Sunday	lantern
	2 & 3 syllables	November	butterfly	Tuesday	cartoon	railroad	Janeern
	2 G 3 Syllables	Columbus	tower	mailbox	numbers	August	
		rainbow	Thursday	return	understand	burglar	
	1	. 3.7150**	arsaay	. c.caiiii	aacratana	Sai Piui	1



Modules 31 – 40

24		ata	l ana	alada	laka	nasta	gana
31		ate	ape	glade	lake snake	paste	gene
	a_e and e_e	hate made	tape	trade plate	snake bake	haste eve	Crete
	a_e and e_e	fade	cape came	plane	cake	Steve	
		wave	same	square	shake	here	
32		pine	ripe	ride	tire	like	
32		spine	time	tide	hire	spike	
	i_e	site	dime	mile	shine	Spike	
	'_c	bite	wine	file	chime		
		kite	mine	fire	white		
33		note	rope	core	broke	stove	
33		rode	dome	score	bone	vote	
	o_e	hope	Rome	spoke	stone	hole	
	"_"	globe	more	joke	throne	mole	
		robe	sore	poke	drove	froze	
34		tube	fluke	tune	pure		
54		duke	June	cube	'		
	u_e	brute	prune	cute			
		lute	rude	mule			
		flute	rule	cur			
35		hoping	whipping	shipping	setting	grabbing	
55		naming	tapping	shopping	letting	rubbing	
	ing	filing	scrapping	spinning	sledding	buzzing	
		sharing	skipping	stirring	spelling	budding	
		licking	slipping	purring	sagging		
36		shady	navy	babies	sadly	funnily	silliest
		daddy	ivy	berry	ugly	sleepily	sunniest
	y and more	twenty	pony	berries	gladly	chillier	dirtiest
		party	ponies	puppy	daily	roomier	carried
		thirsty	baby	puppies	happily	uglier	hurried
37		added	pointed	filled	played	skipped	cracked
		needed	rested	followed	sneezed	dropped	stacked
	ed	seated	wicked	crawled	wiped	crashed	kissed
		shouted	boiled	robbed	baked	scratched	hissed
		counted	sailed	aimed	parked	stitched	fished
38		bigger	ladder	trigger	jungle	bottle	drizzle
		better	rocker	table	needle	kettle	humble
	er, le	pepper	rubber	Bible	riddle	cattle	simple
		supper	slipper	angle	fiddle	puzzle	jingle
	1	dinner	juggler	tangle	saddle	guzzle	snuggle
39		ace	place	choice	traced	cell	fencing
		pace	space	mice	officer	cinders	icing
	ce, ci, cy	peace	prince	spruce	concert	city	pencil
		slice	since	France danced	cent	cigar	Francis Nancy
40	+	lace	ounce cabbage		center	circus	edge
40		huge	package	gentleman George		ginger	hedge
		rage	package	pigeon		engineer gym	bridge
			gem	germs		gypsy	badge
		page stage	urgent	change		dodge	nudged
		Stage	uigent	change		douge	naugeu
	ge, dge, etc.						
					danger		
					strangers		
					hinges		
					magic		
	l	I	L	I	magic	l	1



Modules 41 – 50

4.4		bathe	whether	these	rico	because	
41		breathe	father	those	rise wise	cheese	rosy
	****	bother	other				noisy
	the, se, etc.	gather	mother	hose close	raise noise	please pleased	daisy
		wither	brother	rose			
				ł	pause	amusing	
42		limb	doubt	knot	knee	thistle	write
	attaine la la encio	numb	gnat	knock	knelt	listen	wrong
	silent b, k, t, w	thumb	gnaw	know	castle	wrap	wrestle
		crumb	gnome	knit	hustle	wrist	wreck
		plumber	gnu	knife	whistle	wring	wreath
43		weigh	straight	night	taught	bought	hour
		weight	high	knight	naught	brought	John
	silent gh, h, l	eighty	sigh	bright	caught	thought	calf
		freight	right	fright	daughter	honor	half
		sleigh	tight	mighty	ought	honest	
44		phone	Philip	alphabet	enough		
		photo	elephant	Sophie	cough		
	ph, gh	autograph	prophet	trophy	trough		
		pharmacy	nephew	tough	laugh		
			hyphen	rough			
45		great	breath	ready	heavy	feather	pearl
		steak	dead	spread	wealthy	wear	heard
	ea and ear	break	head	instead	sweat	bear	search
		bread	tread	health	sweater	pear	learn
		breakfast	thread	heaven	weather	Earth	
46		brief	yield	pierce	shrieked	nuisance	pudding
		chief	field	Charlie	suit	put	
	ie, ui, u	thief	fierce	brownie	fruit	push	
		believe	piece	priest	fruitful	bush	
		siege	pier	fiend	juice	pussycat	
47		work	worth	watch	swamp	young	gorgeous
		worm	worship	water	swallow	touchy	marvelous
	wor, wa, ou	word	wall	wander	quality	trouble	
		world	want	waffles	quantity	famous	
		worry	wash	swan	quark	nervous	
48		mansion	pleasure	gracious	station	addition	picture
		permission	treasure	precious	action	attention	mixture
	si, su, ci, ti, tu	expression	usual	suspicious	fraction	cautious	
		occasion	social	delicious	fiction	patient	
		measure	vicious	nation	vacation	nature	
49		give	expensive	doctor	confidence	come	handsome
		active	motor	visitor	residence	become	somehow
	ive, or, ence	passive	razor	conductor	importance	welcome	something
		native	favor	instructor	performance	income	sometimes
		detective	sailor	fence	appearance	some	
50	3 & 4 syllables	beginning	thunderstorm	understand	committee	Cinderella	
	1	correction	musician	impatience	Washington	accident	
		peevishly	passengers	permanent	exchanging	emergency	
		gorilla	surrounded	dictionary	merchandise	transportation	
		blueberries	underneath	emperor	afternoon	conclusion	
	Silent e	note	rope	core	broke	stove	
	3	rode	dome	score	bone	vote	
		hope	Rome	spoke	stone	hole	
		globe	more	joke	throne	mole	
	1	robe	sore	poke	drove	froze	

[End of Document]